



NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

OHIO ASSOCIATION OF PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES/AFSCME/AFL-CIO AND IT'S LOCAL #400

AND THE

NELSONVILLE-YORK CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION



October 1, 2017 thru July 31, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE 2	PRINCIPLES	
ARTICLE 3	BOARD MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE	2
ARTICLE 4	NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	3
ARTICLE 5	AGENCY SHOP	
ARTICLE 6	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
ARTICLE 7	LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	9
ARTICLE 8	DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE	10
ARTICLE 9	JOB DESCRIPTION	10
ARTICLE 10	PERSONAL DAYS	11
ARTICLE 11	OAPSE LEAVE	11
ARTICLE 12	CLASSIFICATION PAY	12
ARTICLE 13	EMPLOYEE EVALUATION	12
ARTICLE 14	PHYSICAL EXAMINATION	13
ARTICLE 15	REPORT PAY	13
ARTICLE 16	TRAVEL ALLOWANCE	13
ARTICLE 17	PERSONNEL FILE	
ARTICLE 18	REDUCTION IN FORCE	
ARTICLE 19	SENIORITY AND VACANCIES	15
ARTICLE 20	OVERTIME	18
ARTICLE 21	SICK LEAVE	19
ARTICLE 22	UNIFORMS	
ARTICLE 23	SEVERANCE PAY	
ARTICLE 24	CALAMITY DAY	
ARTICLE 25	LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
ARTICLE 26	PAY DAYS	
ARTICLE 27	VACATIONS	
ARTICLE 28	HOLIDAYS	
ARTICLE 29	LONGEVITY PAY	
ARTICLE 30	LIFE INSURANCE	
ARTICLE 31	INSURANCE COVERAGE	
ARTICLE 32	ASSAULT LEAVE	
ARTICLE 33	WAGES	
ARTICLE 34	EXTRA TRIP ASSIGNMENTS	
ARTICLE 35	WORKER'S COMPENSATION	
ARTICLE 36	JURY DUTY LEAVE	
ARTICLE 37	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	
ARTICLE 38	DRIVERS ABSTRACTS	
ARTICLE 39	TRANSPORTATION	
ARTICLE 40	CONTRACTING OUT	
ARTICLE 41	TRAINING OR SCHOOLINGFREE ADMISSION TO SCHOOL ACTIVITIES	
ARTICLE 42 ARTICLE 43		
ARTICLE 43 ARTICLE 44	DRUG TESTING DURATION	
ARTICLE 44	SIGNATURE PAGE	
	SALARY SCHEDULES	

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

- 1.1 The Board of Education of the Nelsonville-York City School District, hereinafter referred to as the Board, recognized the Ohio Association of Public School Employees, Local #400, of OAPSE/AFSCME, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the Union, as the sole and exclusive representative for all classified employees and educational aides in the following classifications:
 - A. Custodians
 - B. Maintenance
 - C. Bus Driver
 - D. Secretary
 - E. Maintenance/Custodian
- F. Cafeteria Worker
- G. Educational Aide
- H. Mechanic
- I. Cafeteria

Worker/Cashier

- 1.2 The following positions/classifications are excluded from the bargaining unit:
 - A. Secretary to Superintendent
 - B. Treasurer
 - C. Accounts payable/receivable
 - D. Supervisors(Custodial, Transportation, Maintenance, Cafeteria), Attendance Officer
 - E. Casual and temporary employees as defined under ORC 124 as an emergency employee.
 - F. Substitute employees as defined under ORC 124 as an emergency employee

ARTICLE 2 PRINCIPLES

- 2.1 Bargaining unit employees have the right to join, participate in, and assist the Union and the right to refrain from such, but membership shall not be a prerequisite for employment or continuation of employment of any employees.
- There shall be no discrimination or intimidation by the Board or the Union against any employee as a result of an employee's race, color, religion, sex, military status, age, national origin, disability, ancestry, genetic information, or membership or non-membership in the Union.

ARTICLE 3 BOARD MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE

- The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all power, right, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in by the laws and Constitution of the State of Ohio, and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, right.
 - A. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities of its employees;
 - B. To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion; and to promote and transfer all such employees;
 - C. To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board;
 - D. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers and other employees with respect thereto, and respect to administrative and non-teaching activities, the terms and conditions and employment.
- 3.2 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and law of the State of Ohio and the Constitution and laws of the United States.

ARTICLE 4 NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

4.1 COMMITMENT TO BARGAINING

- A. Scope of Negotiations The Nelsonville-York Board of Education shall enter into negotiations with OAPSE Local #400 for the purpose of achieving a signed master agreement covering all matters pertaining to or affecting wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment of each employee represented by the bargaining unit.
- B. <u>Direction Requests</u> Requests to open negotiations shall be in writing and either sent by certified mail or delivered in person to the receiving party. Board requests shall be directed to the President of the Union, and Union requests shall be directed to the Superintendent. A copy of said request shall be filed with the State Employment Relations Board (SERB) by the initiating party.

The initial request calling for negotiations shall be made by either party sixty to ninety (60 - 90) days prior to the expiration of the current agreement. The first negotiations session shall be arranged by mutual agreement. Such meetings shall not be conducted during the regular school day unless an emergency occurs. Both parties must agree to declare such an emergency.

4.2 **REPRESENTATION**

Negotiating Teams - The Board and the Union shall be Α. represented at all negotiating meetings by a team of negotiators, not to exceed seven (7) members each. Neither party shall have any control over negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other While no final agreement shall be executed without ratification by the Union and the Board, the mutually parties will pledge that their representatives will be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and to make concessions in the course of negotiations. All negotiations shall be conducted exclusively between the teams, and in executive session. In addition to said teams, each party shall be authorized to admit no more than one (1) observer to each meeting. Such observer shall be without the right to speak or communicate to either party.

- B. <u>Consultants</u> The parties may call upon professional and lay consultants. Such consultants may be used at the discretion of the negotiators. The expense of such consultants shall be borne by the party or parties requesting them.
- C. No action to coerce, censor or penalize any participant in negotiations shall be made or implied by any other negotiator or member of either party so represented.

4.3 INITIAL BARGAINING SESSION

A. All issues for negotiations by the Union and the Board shall be submitted in writing at the first meeting. No additional issues shall be submitted by either party following the designated meetings, unless agreed to by both parties.

4.4 WHILE NEGOTIATIONS ARE IN PROCESS

- A. <u>Progress Reports</u> Periodic written progress reports may be issued to the public during negotiations provided that any such release shall have the prior approval of both parties.
- B. Reporting During the period of consideration interim reports of the progress may be made to the union by its representatives and to the Board by its representatives. Any information derived from such reports shall not be disclosed to the general public.
- C. Good Faith Negotiations "Good Faith" requires that the union and the Board be willing to react to each other's proposals. If a proposal is unacceptable to one of the parties, that party is obligated to give its reasons. "Good Faith" means the obligation of the representative of the Board and the Union to meet at reasonable times to deal with each other openly and fairly in an effort to reach an agreement on those matters being negotiated. The obligation to meet for the purpose of professional negotiations does not compel either party to agree on a proposal or make a concession.
- D. <u>Tape Recording</u> No tape recorders or mechanical recording devices shall be permitted in any negotiating session.

E. <u>Information</u> - The Board and the Union agree to supply available public information that is specifically requested and routinely prepared. All costs of reproduction shall be assumed by the requesting party.

4.5 **NEGOTIATIONS TIME LIMITS**

- A. <u>Caucus</u> Upon the request of either party, the negotiation meeting shall be recessed to permit the requesting party a reasonable period mutually agreed upon to caucus.
- B. <u>Length</u> Negotiation meetings shall not exceed three (3) hours in length, unless extended by mutual agreement.

4.6 IMPASSE PROCEDURES

- A. In the event an agreement is not reached by negotiations after forty-five (45) days of bargaining or after full consideration of proposals and counter proposals, either of the parties shall have the option of declaring impasse.
- B. The parties shall jointly prepare a request for a mediator and direct such request to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service.
- C. The assigned mediator shall have the authority to call meetings for the purpose of promoting an agreement between the parties. The mediator has no authority to recommend or to bind either party to any agreement.
- D. In the event there are costs and expenses for such service, the costs shall be shared equally by the Board and the Union.

4.7 MISCELLANEOUS

- A. Upon final approval by both the Union and the Board, two (2) copies of the total agreement shall be signed by the President of the Board and the President of the Union. Both parties shall retain a signed copy of the final agreement, which shall be binding on both parties.
- B. The Board shall be responsible for the typing of the final negotiated agreement. The Union shall be responsible for the distribution of the Agreement to bargaining unit personnel. The parties shall share the

- cost of production equally.
- C. All present language unless deleted or modified will be incorporated into a successor agreement at such time a successor agreement is ratified and approved.

ARTICLE 5 AGENCY SHOP

- 5.1 Employees of the bargaining unit who are not members of the Union and its local shall pay to the Union an Agency fee. The Union shall bear sole responsibility for the enforcement of this provision. Such agency fee shall not exceed dues paid by members of the Union and its local Chapter. Agency fee amounts shall be based upon the fee payer's annual wages as provided by the OAPSE Constitution.
- The Union shall notify the Board of the Agency Fee Amount and of any changes in the amount of dues deductions and shall concurrently provide to each non-member employee a notice of the amount of the fee, adequate explanation as to how the fee was determined, a statement that the employee may file an objection as to the amount and how to receive a rebate, and an explanation as to the procedure which the employee must follow to challenge the amount of fee under the Union's internal rebate procedure.
- Agency fee shall be deducted through the payroll deduction in the same manner as dues deductions, except that written authorization for agency fee deduction is not required. The Union shall notify the treasurer, in writing, the names of non-members prior to agency fee being deducted each year. Both dues and Agency fees shall be forwarded to the State Union with notices of names, addresses and amounts.
- OAPSE membership dues shall be deducted from the employees' pay in twenty-four (24) equal deductions starting with the first pay check of September and continuing until dues are paid. The Board shall submit payment of dues to the State Union (OAPSE). The Board Treasurer shall submit payment of dues to the State Union each pay period in which deductions are made by check for the amount deducted. (This also applies to the agency fee.)
- 5.5 Individual authorization forms shall be furnished by the State Union and when executed shall be filed by

the local chapter with the Board Treasurer.

- 5.6 dues deduction Board agrees not to honor authorizations executed by any employee in unit bargaining in favor of other labor any organization for the life of this agreement.
- The Union shall indemnify the Board, its members and 5.7 administrative and supervisory including the Board's Treasurer (all hereinafter "the indemnities"), and hold them referred to as harmless from any and all liability, damages expenses including but not limited to legal fee and costs directly or indirectly incurred by indemnities, as the result of any legal action or administrative claim brought against them as a result of the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 6 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

6.1 A grievance is defined as an alleged violation of a specific article or section of this Agreement. If any such grievance arises, there shall be no stoppage or suspension of work, or concerted activity because of such grievance, but such grievance shall be submitted to the following grievance procedure.

6.2 STEP ONE

Within ten (10) working days of the time a grievance arises or knowledge of a grievance, the employee or the Union will present the grievance in writing, to his supervisor or the appropriate designated person. Within five (5) working days after presentation of the grievance, the supervisor or designated representative shall give his answer in writing to the employee.

STEP TWO

If the grievance is not resolved in Step One, the employee or the Union Representative may, within five (5) working days of receipt of the supervisor's answer, submit to the Superintendent or his designated representative the answer at Step One with the original grievance statement. The Superintendent or his designated representative shall give the employee or his Union Representative an answer in writing, no later than five (5) working days after receipt of the written grievance.

STEP THREE

If a satisfaction disposition of the grievance is not made as a result of the procedure provided for in Step Two, the Union shall have the right to appeal the dispute to an impartial arbitrator under accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association. Such appeal must be taken within fifteen working days from the date of the Grievance" attached thereto with the American Arbitration Association and a of the сору notice served on the Administration's Representative.

6.3 **GRIEVANCE FORMS**

A. Any grievance must be filed on the authorized grievance form Agreed to between the parties to the Agreement.

Such forms must provide for naming of the alleged violation and shall state the contention of the employee or the Union, and shall indicate the relief requested.

- B. Any grievance not advanced to the next step by the Union within the time limit in that step shall be deemed resolved by the Administration's last answer.
- C. Any grievance not answered by the Administration within the time limit in that step shall be deemed resolved by the relief requested by the employee or the Union. However, the remedy granted in such a case shall only apply to the alleged violation and shall not set a precedent for future grievance resolution.
- D. Time limits may be extended by the Administration and the Union in writing, and then the new date shall prevail.
- E. The agreed to grievance form shall be made available to any employee requesting such, either through his Supervisor or Union Representative.
- F. Two (2) employees shall be on paid release time during any arbitration. In as much as possible arbitrations shall be held outside of the employee's scheduled work time.

6.4 POWER OF THE ARBITRATOR

- A. It shall be the function of the Arbitrator and he shall be empowered, except as his powers are limited below, after due investigation to make a decision in case of alleged violation outlined in Article 6.1, Section 1 of this Agreement.
- B. He shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
- C. He shall have no power to establish salary schedules or change salary schedules.
- D. He shall have no power to decide any question, which, under this Agreement, is solely within the responsibility of management to decide.
- E. In the event that a case is appealed to an Arbitrator on which he determines he has no power to rule, it shall be referred back to the Union, with a notification to the Administration without decision or recommendation on its merits.
- F. There shall be no appeal from an Arbitrator's decision if within the scope of his authority as set forth above. It shall be final and binding on the employee or employees involved in the grievance, and the Administration and the Board.
- F. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the non-prevailing party. Grievance hearings shall not be held during the grievant's working hours.

ARTICLE 7 LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE/SAFETY COMMITTEE

- 7.1 The Board or its designated representative(s) and the Union or its representative(s) agrees to meet and discuss with the other concerning issues other than those in this Agreement on a bi-monthly basis.

 Meetings shall be limited to one hour, with agendas exchanged prior to the meeting.
- 7.2 The Board of Education agrees to recognize an OAPSE Safety Committee. Said Committee will be selected from each classification recognized in this agreement. One

- (1) representative will be selected from each classification to serve on this committee. Employees who serve on this committee will be selected from the non certificated staff and will meet on a regular basis with representatives of the Administration.
- 7.3 The powers of the Safety Committee shall be limited to recommending safety changes to the Administration first and then to the Board of Education.

ARTICLE 8 DISCIPLINE PROCEDURE

- 8.1 Disciplinary action shall consist of a course designed to improve the quality of the employee. Disciplinary action shall be for just cause.
- 8.2 No employee shall be formally disciplined without having had hearing with a Representative of his choice present, if the employee so requests. The employee shall be given a written statement containing the charges and the time and place of the hearing. The written statement shall notify the employee of his rights representation. The employee must sign the statement acknowledging receipt of the statement and received.
- 8.3 Any report of disciplinary action in an employee's personnel file taken longer than the past twelve (12) months and providing the offense has not been repeated, shall not be applied to any further discipline that may occur.

Definition - Formal Discipline: Any discipline serious enough to be included in the employee's personnel file.

ARTICLE 9 JOB DESCRIPTION

- 9.1 The Union shall be furnished with a copy of the job description of each classification covered under the terms of this Agreement.
- 9.2 Prior to any change in any job description covered under this Agreement, OAPSE Local #400 shall be notified of such change anticipated and prior to the effective date of such change; the changes shall be reviewed and discussed within the party's labor/management committee.

ARTICLE 10 PERSONAL DAYS

- 10.1 Four (4) personal leave days per school year will be granted to all employed members of the bargaining unit. Personal leave will not need justification or explanation by the member, but the member will give two (2) work days notice. The nature of the business will not be questioned but the day is not to be used for the seeking of or participation in employment. In addition to the above, personal leave will not be used immediately before or after any holiday or vacation beyond what is permitted Section 10.4 of this Article, for partisan political participation or for the participation or assistance in any strike activity. Personal leave will not be used during the first or last week of school without explanation of the reasons the leave is being requested.
- 10.2 Any documented abuse of personal leave may result in disciplinary action taken by the Board against the member of the bargaining unit, up to docking one day's pay per occurrence of each abused day. Such action must occur within twenty-one (21) administrative working days from the serving of written reasons to the member and after a meeting is held on the matter. An Union Representative may attend the meeting if so desired by the member.
- 10.3 Any unused personal days shall be converted to sick leave at the end of the school year exclusive of the cap on sick leave.
- 10.4 The number of employees permitted to be out on personal leave may be limited to 15% of the total number of members in each classification in a building.

Cooks	2
Secretaries	1
Bus driver/mechanic	3
Aides	2
Custodians/Maintenance Custodian	2

ARTICLE 11 OAPSE LEAVE

11.1 The Board agrees to permit two (2) duly elected delegates of OAPSE Local #400 leave of three (3) days

to attend the OAPSE annual Conference with continuity of salary.

ARTICLE 12 CLASSIFICATION PAY

- 12.1 Any employee required to perform work in a higher classification shall receive the rate of pay normally paid the higher classification retroactive to the first day of performing work in the higher classification.
- 12.2 No employee shall be paid less than his/her normal hourly wage when performing duties outside of their classification.

ARTICLE 13 EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

- 13.1 Evaluation form(s) made out on any employee's work record shall be examined by the employee and initialed by him/her.
- 13.2 Any employee may write his/her comments relative to the evaluation on any evaluation form examined by the employees.
- 13.3 The Board and the Union shall periodically review the evaluation form to discuss suggestions for improvement.
- 13.4 All evaluation forms shall be summarized into an annual evaluation. The annual evaluation will involve the following:
 - 1) general conference with building principle and/or immediate supervisor;
 - examination of the document by the employee and initialed by the employee to indicate that the examination has occurred;
 - 3) Comments by the supervisor relative to strengths and weaknesses of said employee.
- 13.5 Copies of the evaluation form(s) will be filed with the following:
 - a) employee
 - b) immediate supervisor;

- c) personnel director;
- d) Employee personnel file.
- 13.6 Performance Evaluation Form

Old form will be replaced with new forms (one for each classification).

ARTICLE 14 PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

14.1 The Board agrees that if any regular employee, after his/her initial employment, is required to have a physical examination, the Board of Education will pay the full cost of such examination, provided that the employee goes to a physician designated by the Board.

ARTICLE 15 REPORT PAY

15.1 In the event an employee is requested to report other than at his normal schedule, he shall be paid at least three (3) hours pay at the applicable rate of pay.

ARTICLE 16 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE

16.1 Any bargaining unit member required to use his/her personal vehicle in the performance of job duties shall be paid thirty-five cents (\$0.35) per mile for all such miles driven.

ARTICLE 17 PERSONNEL FILE

- 17.1 Any bargaining unit member shall have the right to inspect his personnel file and to obtain a copy or copies of such material.
- 17.2 Employment references included in the personnel file shall not be subject to review by the employee.
- 17.3 When examining his/her file, any bargaining unit member shall have the right to a representative from the union present.
- 17.4 A bargaining unit member shall have the right to attach a statement to any derogatory or discipline action of any nature that is placed in personnel file.

ARTICLE 18 REDUCTION IN FORCE

- 18.1 Layoffs shall not occur because of the sub-contracting of bargaining unit work. The Board shall not use managerial, temporary, casual, seasonal and/or substitute employees for the purpose of reducing the bargaining unit and/or the unit employees scheduled hours and/or wages.
- 18.2 If it becomes necessary to reduce the number of employees in any job classification due to lack of work or job abolishment, such funds, lack of reductions shall be limited, as much as practical, by For the purpose of Reduction in Force, the attrition. classifications involved shall be head cooks, cooks, cafeteria worker/cashier, bus drivers, custodians, maintenance/custodian, secretaries, educational aides.
- 18.3 In any classification provisional employees shall be laid off first, followed by probationary employees. All layoffs shall begin with the least senior employee and continue in reverse order of seniority.
- 18.4 In any classification regular employees shall laid off last beginning with the least senior employee and continuing in reverse order of seniority.
- In cases where more than one employee has identical seniority dates, system seniority shall determine the order of layoff. Where system seniority is also identical, evaluation by the Superintendent in consultation with the immediate supervisor shall determine the order of layoff.
- 18.6 Twenty days prior to the effective date of any layoff the Board shall prepare a list of names, classifications, and seniority dates of any employees to be laid off and shall post and list in all school buildings and the bus garage.
- 18.7 Each employee who will be laid off shall be given twenty days advance written notice, which shall include the following:
 - A. Reason for the layoff.
 - B. Effective date of the layoff.
 - C. A statement advising the employee of reinstatement rights.

- 18.8 The layoff list for each classification shall be sent to the President of the OAPSE Local.
- 18.9 Any employee who is laid off under the provisions shall maintain recall rights for a period of two (2) years from the date of the layoff. Employees shall be recalled in reverse order layoff, with the most senior employee recalled first. Notice of recall to any vacancy shall be sent to an employee by the Board by certified mail. A laid off employee shall have ten (10) work days from the date of receipt of such notice to accept or reject the Any employee who declines recall shall be removed from the list. A recalled employee shall be credited with all previously accumulated seniority.
- An employee scheduled for layoff in one classification, who holds previous seniority in another classification, shall have the right to bump the least senior employee in the former classification providing he/she has greater seniority in that classification than the current least senior employee. The employee may not displace employees in a classification if the employee does not meet the minimum qualifications. The employee who elects to bump shall retain all rights to recall to the position in which the layoff occurred.

ARTICLE 19 SENIORITY AND VACANCIES

- 19.1 System seniority shall be defined as the uninterrupted length of service by an employee with the Board as computed from the employee's first day of work.
- 19.2 Classification seniority shall be defined as the uninterrupted length of service in a particular job classification as computed from the employee's first day of work in the appropriate classification.
- 19.3 Authorized leave of absences or leaves taken because of injury or illness sustained in the course of employment shall not constitute an interruption in service. Employees who change classifications shall retain the classification seniority that they held within the vacated classification. Should they return, within one year, to that classification they will assume the years of service at the time they left the classification.

- 19.4 The OAPSE Local President shall be provided with updated seniority lists for all classifications.
- 19.5 Vacancies shall be posted and filled as follows:
 - A. When a vacancy occurs in a classification or work location and a determination as such is made by the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting, a vacancy notice shall be conspicuously posted in all school buildings and bus garage within ten (10) working days for a period of five (5) working days indicating the position vacancy and qualifications. Any bargaining unit member may request the vacancy by sending a notice of bid to the Superintendent of schools. Applications filed after the posting period will not be considered.
 - B. The Employer will use the following procedures in choosing an employee to fill a vacancy:
 - The position will first be offered to 1. employee applicants who are currently working in the classification as the vacancy exists within twenty (20) actual work days of the close of the posting If more than one employee within period. classification applies for the vacancy, qualified applicant will senior be awarded the position.
 - 2. If no qualified employee from within the classification where the vacancy exists applies for the position, all other applicants for the position will then be considered. Applicants who are currently employed in other classifications will be interviewed for the position. The Employer will select the applicant most qualified based upon the employee=s relevant skills, qualifications, experience, evaluations and seniority. The Employer may hire someone from the outside if no current employee meets the qualifications of the position based upon the approved criteria.
 - 3. Employees who have been awarded a position in another classification shall serve a twenty (20) actual work day trial period in the new position. Nothing in this section shall restrict the Employer=s right to not fill a posted vacancy. Substitutes may be employed until such time as a vacancy, which has occurred, is filled for up to sixty (60) actual consecutive work days.

- C. All job postings shall be placed in every employee's pay envelope whenever school is not in session during the summer.
- 19.6 employee may be transferred or reassigned An another position for which they are qualified provided the following conditions exist: There is another employee willing to transfer or a vacancy may exist and there is approval within the affected classification prior to such transfer. Transfers that affect more than one classification must be approved by the affected classifications. The employee shall not be placed in a position which results reduction in total compensation. After two documented attempts to solve the problem have been placed in an file employee's personnel an involuntary transfer/reassignment will be made only after meeting between the employee involved and the superintendent at which time the employee will be notified in writing of the reasons. If the employee so requests, a union representative shall be at the meeting. No employee will be transferred arbitrarily, capriciously or without a rational reason. involuntary transfer involving equally enacting an qualified members, the member with the least seniority shall be transferred, unless there is a demonstrated rational reason for overriding seniority.
- 19.7 Prior to the need of employees to begin working in any new building or facility in the District, the employer shall meet with representatives of the union in the Labor/Management Committee, per Article 7, to discuss the process of filling positions within the building or facility.
- 19.8 The following probationary period shall be used for anyone hired after January 1, 2015.

Newly hired regular nonteaching school employees shall have all rights and benefits as other full time nonteaching employees but will enter into written contracts for their employment which shall be for a period of not more than one year. If such employees are renewed, their subsequent contract shall be continued in employment.

ARTICLE 20 OVERTIME

- All overtime within a certain classification shall be offered to bargaining unit employees within that classification on a rotation basis. However, if the overtime is caused by an emergency or unanticipated occurrence, the supervisor may offer the overtime to the employee he considers most qualified. The following formula, recognizing seniority, will be used in assigning the overtime.
- 20.2 All overtime work shall be posted five (5) days in advance if possible. Employees shall be awarded overtime within their own job location before it is offered to an employee from another location.
- 20.3 If an employee within a job location declines overtime, it shall be offered to the senior employee within the job classification that the overtime is needed. Such overtime out of location shall be on a rotation basis.
- 20.4 All hours over forty (40) in one week shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1 1/2). All work performed on Sunday shall be paid at the rate of double time (2).
- 20.5 Days on which compensation is received shall count toward hours for overtime purposes.
- 20.6 Cafeteria workers at the Nelsonville-York Schools will be granted overtime at the discretion of the Operations Supervisor or the Superintendent. Approval, if granted, will be prior to the work performed and the proper form signed by the head cook authorizing the need for overtime work.
- 20.7 Short-hour regular employees shall be offered any extra hours available in their classification due to the absence of an employee prior to the assigning of those hours of any substitute.
- 20.8 Each employee will be asked at the beginning of each academic year about their interest of working overtime. Those stating no interest are removed from overtime consideration until such time that the employee so states, in writing, to the immediate supervisor of intention to again be considered for overtime work.

- 20.09 Any action by an employee that requires the district to expend funds must have prior approval of the superintendent. This is not limited exclusively but would include the following: salary or benefits including overtime, registration fees, medical exams, supplies or equipment, any contracted service.
- 20.10 All performed overtime is to be reported on Board approved documentation and processed by the treasurer's office. Employees will not negotiate or accept direct payment for such approved overtime compensation.
- 20.11 The use of school facilities involving Nelsonville-York approved student activities or non-profit community organizations involving Nelsonville-York students by authority of the superintendent may not require custodial, cafeteria or other school district services with which they will be charged or for which the school district is obligated to pay.
- 20.12 If an aide is required to work or be assigned to any extra trip, then they shall be paid for all hours of the trip beyond the hours of their regular day. Aides not required to work or assigned to any extra trip shall continue to work their normal day.

ARTICLE 21 SICK LEAVE

- 21.1 Each person employed by the Board as a regular employee shall be entitled to fifteen (15) days sick leave per year which shall be credited at the rate of one and one-fourth (1 1/4) days per month.
- 21.2 Sick leave may be used for the absence of an employee due to personal illness, injury, exposure to contagious disease, which could be communicated to other employees, pregnancy, and illness in the immediate family. For purposes of this section, "immediate family" shall include spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, grandfather, grandmother, grandchildren, and in-laws. Unused sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of three hundred and twenty-eight (328) days.
- 21.3 Regular employees who render part-time, seasonal, intermittent, or per diem service shall be credited with sick leave as required by state statute. Statutory requirements will be followed in regard to

the transfer of sick days from one public employer to another.

- 21.4 If sick leave is taken and medical attention is necessary, the employee shall submit a signed doctor's statement to justify the use of sick leave.
- 21.5 Any employee using sick leave three (3) of any five (5) consecutive work days must provide a doctor's excuse or be docked for those days.
- 21.6 If an employee has more than twelve (12) sick occurrences in a year, each time the employee is absent after the 12 occurrence due to illness or for medical reasons, he/she must submit a signed doctor's excuse.

An occurrence is anytime an employee is off sick. If there is no break in the sick leave then it is one occurrence. When an employee returns to work and then is off sick again, that would start a new occurrence. Example: off sick in the morning (one occurrence) back in the afternoon off the next morning (starts a new occurrence).

Falsification of a doctor excuse is grounds for suspension or termination of employment.

21.7 Bargaining unit employees shall receive an incentive bonus for attendance during each school year based upon one (1) of the following formulas:

0	use	of	sick	days	and	no	dock	days	 	 	 \$800.	.00
1	day	and	l no	dock	days.				 	 	 \$600.	.00
2	davs	s ar	nd no	dock	davs	3.			 	 	 \$400.	.00

For twelve-month employee the following attendance bonus shall apply:

0	use of sick days and no dock days	\$1000.00
1	day and no dock days	\$800.00
2	days and no dock days	\$600.00

Nine and ten month employees shall receive bonus payment at the end of their contract year (June 30).

Twelve-month employees shall receive bonus payment at the end of their contract year (July 31). For the incentive bonus, dock days shall not include when bus drivers take a trip and give up driving part or all of their regular route.

21.8 Employees may transfer up to five (5) days of sick leave in any one year to any other employee who has exhausted his/her accumulated sick leave as a result of a catastrophic or extended illness or injury. A maximum of 200 days sick leave per year may be transferred for the benefit of the ill or injured employee. These days shall not act as accumulated sick leave for the employee receiving the sick days nor the transferring of sick leave days by an employee deter from the sick leave incentive bonus.

An employee must have accumulated 100 days of sick leave to be eligible to transfer days to another employee.

All sick leave transfers must be done by October $1^{\rm st}$ of each year.

There shall be a five-member committee established to review all sick leave transferred and used under this provision. The committee shall consist of two union members, two representatives of the employer and a fifth member appointed by the four other members.

ARTICLE 22 UNIFORMS

- The Board agrees to provide one (1) set of lightweight and one (1) set of heavy duty (cold weather) coveralls for bus mechanic annually. Custodians/Maintenance shall be provided one (1) set of lightweight coveralls upon request annually. The cost of the coveralls shall be shared equally by the employee and the Board.
- 22.2 The employee agrees to maintain the coveralls and in return the Board agrees that the coveralls shall become the property of the employee.
- The Board shall provide 1 \$125.00 clothing allowance for each cook annually, not to exceed \$1125.00 for the entire staff. Cooks are to wear uniform type clothes (i.e. smocks, T-shirts, shoes, scrub or uniform pants and a hat/visor. The allowance shall be in the form of a reimbursement. All receipts must be turned in to the Treasurer's office between August 1st and September 30th of each year.

ARTICLE 23 SEVERANCE PAY

- A Nelsonville-York School System classified employee shall at the time of retirement be entitled to severance pay. "Retirement" shall be defined to mean actual retirement from the Ohio State Public School Employee's Retirement System and have officially applied and been approved by that system for retirement benefits.
- 23.2 Retirees who qualify for severance pay in the Nelsonville-York City School District shall be eligible for payment of 25% of their unused sick leave up to a maximum of 328 days (82) days actual pay based upon their per diem rate at the time of retirement. The retiree shall have worked the last ten (10) years immediately before retirement in the Nelsonville-York City School District to be eliqible for retirement compensation severance pay.
- 23.3 SERS-Board "Pick-up" shall be implemented effective beginning no later than the third full day pay period following the effective date of this agreement. This change in procedure will be of no cost to the Board and is solely for the purpose of reducing current tax for members of the bargaining unit and will remain in effect so long as Revenue Ruling No. 77642 remains substantially unchanged. Employees are individually responsible for reviewing the relationship between this Article and their other tax deferral arrangements, if any.

ARTICLE 24 CALAMITY DAY

- 24.1 All employees shall be paid their appropriate rate of pay for all days or part of a day when schools in which they are employed are closing due to an epidemic or other public calamity.
- 24.2 Employees have been placed in three categories with respect to the services provided to the school district. Only those employees deemed Essential may be required to report if a level 3 travel emergency has been declared by the Sheriff of Athens County.

Only those employees deemed Essential or Necessary will be required to report to duty on calamity days. The employees deemed Operational may be required to report to duty on emergency/calamity days if their appropriate supervisor contacts them for in-service, training or other job related duties during the closure. The categories are as follows:

Essential Personnel All Custodial Staff

Necessary Personnel
Mechanic, 12 Month Secretaries

Operational Personnel

Bus Drivers, Bus Aides, Cafeteria Workers Educational Aides, 10 Month Secretaries

Buckeye State Sheriff's Association Travel Emergency Levels

- Level 1: Roadways are hazardous with blowing and drifting snow.
 Roads are also icy. Drive very cautiously
- Level 2: Roadways are hazardous with blowing and drifting snow. Only those who feel it necessary to drive should be out on the roadways. Contact your employer to see if you should report to work.
- Level 3: All roadways are closed to non-emergency personnel.

 No one should be out on the roads unless it is absolutely necessary to travel. All employees should contact their employer to see if they should report to work. Persons traveling on the roadways may be subject to arrest.

Essential Personnel

All Custodians

All Custodians are to report to work at their regular scheduled time. If the Sheriff of Athens County declares a level 3 travel emergency, these positions should contact the Building Principal to determine if there will be an alternate starting time or the employees are to remain off duty for the day. These positions should report at their regular time in the event of a delayed school starting time. Any employee not reporting for duty as described above must use

paid leave time (i.e. sick leave, vacation time, personal day). Any questions should be directed to the Building Principal.

Necessary Personnel

Mechanic Secretaries 12 Months

These positions must report at their regular scheduled time unless the Sheriff of Athens County has declared a level 3 travel emergency. At which time they are not required to report unless contacted by their appropriate supervisor. If the school starting time is delayed these positions should report at their regular time. Any employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. vacation, sick personal day). Any questions or for the custodial staff should be directed to the Building Principal. Any questions for the mechanic should be directed to the Transportation supervisor.

Secretaries will not be required to report during the first five (5) emergency/calamity days, but after the first five (5) days this position will be required to report at the request of their appropriate supervisor to perform job related tasks. If the school starting time is delayed this position should report after the delay unless notified otherwise. In the event the Sheriff of Athens County has declared a level 2 or 3 travel emergency this position should not report unless contacted by their appropriate supervisor. employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. sick leave or personal Any questions should be directed to day). building principal, special programs employee's director, or curriculum director.

Operational Personnel

Bus Drivers
Bus Aides
Educational Aides
Cafeteria Workers
Secretaries 10 months

Bus Drivers will not be required to report during the first five (5) emergency/calamity days, but after the first five (5) days this position may be required to report at the request of their appropriate supervisor for in-service training or to perform job related

tasks. If the school starting time is delayed this position should report after the delay. In the event the Sheriff of Athens County has declared a level 2 or 3 travel emergency this position should not report unless contacted by their appropriate supervisor. Any employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. sick leave, personal day). Any questions should be directed to the Transportation Supervisor.

Educational Aides and Bus Aides will not be required to report during the first five (5) emergency/calamity days, but after the first five (5) days this position may be required to report at the request of their appropriate supervisor for in-service training or to perform job related tasks. If the school starting time is delayed this position should report after the In the event the Sheriff of Athens County declares a level 2 or 3 travel emergency this position should not report unless contacted by appropriate supervisor. Any employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. sick leave, personal leave). Any questions should be directed to the Special Programs Director.

Cafeteria workers will not be required to report during the first five (5) emergency/calamity days, but after the first five (5) days these employees may be required to report at the request of the Building Principal to perform necessary job related tasks. the school starting time is delayed, then these positions should report at their regular scheduled time unless notified otherwise. In the event the Sheriff of Athens County has declared a level 2 or 3 travel emergency this position should not report unless contacted by their appropriate supervisor. employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. sick leave, personal day). Any questions should be directed to the Building Principal.

Secretaries 10 months will not be required to report during the first 5 Emergency/Calamity Days but after the first 5 days these employees may be required to report at the request of their Principal for inservice training or to perform necessary job related tasks. If the school starting time is delayed these positions should report at their regular scheduled time unless notified otherwise. In the event the

Sheriff of Athens County has declared a level 2 or 3 travel emergency this position should not report unless contacted by their appropriate supervisor. Any employee not reporting for duty as described above must use paid leave time (i.e. sick leave or personal day). Any questions should be directed to that secretary's building principal.

ARTICLE 25 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- 25.1 Upon a written request the Board of Education may grant a leave of absence without pay for a period of not more than two (2) years for educational or professional or other purposes and shall grant such leaves where illness or other disability is the reason for the request. No fringe benefits of any type are granted with a leave of absence.
- Upon the return of the employee from a leave, the Board may terminate the employment of a person hired for the purpose of replacing the returning employee while he was on leave.
- 25.3 If after the return of the employee from leave, the person employed for the purpose of replacing an employee on leave, is continued in employment as a regular employee, if the employee is hired by the Board as a regular employee within a year after his employment as a replacement, he shall receive credit for his length of service with the Board during such replacement period.

ARTICLE 26 PAY DAYS

- 26.1 Effective August 2018, all employees pay shall be calculated and paid in twenty-four (24) equal payments and distributed the $15^{\rm th}$ and $30^{\rm th}$ of the month.
- When pay day falls on a holiday, the preceding day shall be pay day, unless pay day falls on January 1, in which case pay day will either be January 1 or January 2. Effective August 2018, when a pay day falls on a holiday or weekend, the pay checks shall be distributed on the last regular day of work before the scheduled day off.

- 26.3 All employees must receive their paychecks via direct deposit.
- The employer agrees to deduct from the wages of any employee a P.E.O.P.L.E. deduction as provided for in a written authorization. Such authorization must be executed by the employee and may be revoked by the employee at any time by giving written notice to both the employer and the Union.

ARTICLE 27 VACATION

- 27.1 All twelve (12) month employees are entitled to and shall be granted upon request, two (2) weeks vacation with pay each school year, for the first six (6) years of service completed.
- 27.2 All twelve (12) month employees are entitled to and shall be granted upon request, three (3) weeks vacation with pay each school year, for each year after six (6) and including eleven (11) years.
- 27.3 All twelve (12) month employees are entitled to and shall be granted upon request, four (4) weeks vacation with pay each school year, for each year after twelve (12) years.
- 27.4 An employee may redeem up to two weeks of his/her earned vacation at the regular rate of pay.
- 27.5 An employee shall notify the administration seven (7) days in advance of requested vacation time. This notification time may be shortened by the Superintendent/Building Principal.
- 27.6 Vacation leave for twelve month employees can only be accumulated up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. The Treasurer shall keep a vacation leave record for each employee entitled to this benefit.
- 27.7 When any employee who works in a position that is not entitled to vacation and moves into a position that is entitled to vacation, they shall have their earned vacation time calculated in the manner as follows:

The total years worked in their previous position(s) shall be converted into months. This figure is divided by 12 to obtain the number of twelve month

years worked. The number of years will be used to set the years of service for the earning of vacation time per this article.

ARTICLE 28 HOLIDAYS

All nine (9), ten (10), eleven (11) and twelve (12) month employees shall receive the following days off with pay. In addition to the holidays received by nine (9) and ten (10) month employees all eleven (11) and twelve (12) month employees receive the 4th of July as a day off work with pay.

New Year's Day
Day before Christmas
Christmas Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving

Martin Luther King Day Memorial Day Labor Day July 4th (11 & 12 month employees only)

28.2 Employees required to perform work on a paid holiday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1/2) in addition to this holiday pay.

ARTICLE 29 LONGEVITY PAY

- 29.1 The employer agrees to recognize the faithful years of service of the employees. The following longevity schedule shall become effective at the beginning of the affected employee's school year.
- After an employee completes fourteen (14) years of service, he shall receive an additional fifteen cents (\$0.15) per hour added to his/her regular hours of pay.* All years of service over fifteen (15) he/she shall receive an additional one cents (\$0.01) per hour added to his/her regular hours of pay. This means an employee gets an additional fifteen cents (\$0.15) per regular hour worked in his fifteenth (15th) year, an additional one cent (\$0.01) per regular hour in his sixteenth (16) year, and continues at this longevity figure of an additional one cents (\$0.01) per annum through his/her employment.
- 29.3 Employees at twenty (20) years of service shall receive five cents (\$0.05) per hour and for employees at twenty-five (25) years of service another additional five cents (\$0.05) per hour shall be added to his/her hourly rate.

*Definition of regular hours of pay

Regular hours include:

Based contracted salary;
Holidays;

Any extra time added to the employees contracted hours on a daily basis.

Regular hours excluded:

Kindergartens;
Extra trips;
Overtime

ARTICLE 30 LIFE INSURANCE

30.1 The Board of Education agrees to provide at Full cost to the Board a \$40,000 Life Insurance Plan.

ARTICLE 31 INSURANCE COVERAGE

- 31.1 A. The Board shall offer employees a three tiered health insurance program. Employees will be asked to choose the 90% in Network PPO Plan, PPO Plan III, or the High Deductible Health Care Plan with a Health Savings Account.
 - B. The Board will pay 85% (Family or single) of any of the three health insurance plans. The employee will pay the other 15% (family or single).
 - C. If the employee chooses the High Deductible Health Care Plan the Board will contribute to a Health Savings Account. The Board contributions will be as follows:

•	January	- December	2017	\$4100.00	for	family	coverage
				\$1500.00	for	single	coverage
•	January	- December	2018	\$4100.00	for	family	coverage
				\$1500.00	for	single	coverage
•	January	- December	2019	\$4100.00	for	family	coverage
				\$1500.00	for	single	coverage

31.2 Employees hired or bid (and awarded) positions, after September 1, 2006, that are regularly scheduled to work twenty-five (25) hours or less shall be eligible for health insurance on a pro-rata basis (40 hours per week).

- 31.3 The Board agrees to provide, at full cost to the Board, a Vision Insurance Plan to all employees.
- 31.4 Additionally, a mandatory second opinion for elective surgery shall be required as well as pre-admission testing. No weekend admission (Friday p.m. to Sunday noon) except for emergencies and pre-certification of hospital stays for elective surgery.
- 31.5 The Board retains the right to submit the agreed upon coverage out of bid in an attempt to reduce costs. Any coverage selected shall be equal to or greater than the plan currently in effect.
- 31.6 In the event that the Board is planning to request bids, the Union President shall be notified in order for him/her to compare the existing coverage with the bid coverage in order to insure that they are equal to or greater than that currently in effect.
- The Board shall provide the same Dental Insurance Plan and premium payments as for teacher=s.
- 31.8 X-ray, outpatient laboratory, and second opinion surgery coverage are included in the insurance program for non-certified employees
- The Board shall implement a Section 125 Plan to enable employees to their premium contribution with pre-tax dollars. The set-up fee and annual administrative fee per participation for the Section 125 shall be paid by the Board.
- 31.10 The Board shall contribute \$0.50 per month to the Ohio AFSCME Hearing Aide Plan for each employee who is covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 32 ASSAULT LEAVE

In the event that an employee is required to take a leave because of an assault while performing his assigned duties under employment of the Board, he/she shall be entitled to assault leave payment equivalent to his regular or appropriate rate of pay. The Board will pay the difference between worker's compensation and his/her appropriate salary, not to exceed 90 days.

- 32.2 Assault leave shall begin with the first day of absence from work due to the assault injury.
- 32.3 Assault leave shall not be deducted from sick leave accumulated days.
- 32.4 To qualify for assault leave, an employee must file claim with the Bureau of Worker's Compensation and qualify. All medical payments not covered by the BWC shall be applied for through the Appropriate School Insurance Plan.
- 32.5 An employee shall be entitled to accumulate sick leave for all time off approved for assault leave.

ARTICLE 33 WAGES

- 33.1 Shift differential Custodians who work between 3:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. will be paid an additional twelve cents (\$.12) per hour for each hour worked within this time span.
- 33.2 All bargaining unit members shall receive a fifty cent (\$.50) raise in pay per hour, effective October 1, 2017, with the ratification of contract.
 - All bargaining unit members shall receive a forty cent (\$.40) raise in pay per hour, effective with the anniversary date of their contract for FY19.
 - All bargaining unit members shall receive a forty cent (\$.40) raise in pay per hour, effective with the anniversary date of their contract for FY20.

ARTICLE 34 EXTRA TRIP ASSIGNMENTS

- 34.1 On September 1st each year all regular drivers shall be placed on a list for extra trips. Drivers who elect to be removed from the list for the remainder of the school year must in writing do so to the Transportation Supervisor. The list shall rank drivers in order of seniority.
- 34.2 Extra trip assignments shall be offered to all regular drivers before securing substitute drivers.
- 34.3 All extra trips scheduled to last until after the completion of the drivers regularly scheduled work

hours shall be assigned by rotation the list top to bottom regardless of whether a driver accepts or declines the trip before another trip will be offered to said driver.

- Drivers will be allowed to trade a posted trip from the same rotation list one time with prior supervisor approval. In the event trips are turned down, there shall be a turn down list for A.M. and P.M. trips.
- 34.5 Drivers who wish to refuse trips shall notify the Transportation Supervisor at the earliest possible time that any trip will not be taken so as to give the supervisor ample time to obtain a replacement driver.

The penalty for turning down an assigned trip within 48 hours of the trip will be as follows:

- 1. First time Driver will lose one rotation on the trip list.
- 2. Second time- Driver will lose two rotations on the trip list.
- 3. More than two (2) times will result in the Driver not being able to take any trips for the remainder of the school year.

If a driver has a doctor's excuse he/she will be excused from the trip with no penalty.

School year for the purpose of this section shall be defined September 1st thru August 31st.

- Available regular drivers may elect by a rotating list to take trips during the day that does not interfere with their regular route. If the trip begins before the end of the morning route or ends during the afternoon route, drivers may take the trip by forfeiting the overlapping hours.
- 34.7 Extra trips shall be offered to drivers by the date and time of departure. Extra trips shall be posted by the trip date with the earliest date posted first. All trip notices shall be posted five (5) days in advance if possible. Extra trips with the same departure date shall be posted by the earliest departure time first. Trips with the same departure date shall be posted by the earliest departure time

first. Trips with the same departure time shall be posted by the trip with the latest expected return time first. Emergency assignment will be handled by the supervisor but will be limited to unforeseen circumstances and will be kept to an absolute minimum.

- 34.8 Drivers will be allowed to trade a posted trip from the same rotation list one time with prior supervisor approval.
- 34.9 When a driver is assigned a trip and that trip is cancelled, the transportation supervisor shall attempt to contact the driver and assign the net available trip to that driver. If contact cannot be made and the driver reports for the cancelled trip he/she shall receive two (2) hours pay.
- 34.10 Drivers shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay for all trips driven.
- 34.11 Extra trips in which all drivers on the list for extra trip assignments have refused or are not available and Board approved substitute drivers are not available for service will be assigned to the least senior bus driver applying reverse seniority. The driver may be excused from this assignment under this provision only for circumstances including illness or injury that would have excluded them from their regular duty on the work day that the extra trip assigned. Drivers assigned to such trips shall be paid their regular rate of pay for all hours of the trip.
- 34.12 Actual drive time and actual down time will be reported on all extra trips. Drivers will receive their hourly rate of pay for all drive time. time not exceeding six (6) hours will be paid at the driver's hourly rate. Down time exceeding six (6) will be flat one hundred seventy-five hours a (\$175.00) dollar payment. This includes Saturday and Sunday trips. Overnight trips will be paid \$175.00 per day plus hourly rate of pay for drive time.
- Nine or more passengers, excluding the driver shall constitute a trip to be assigned to a regular driver except for the following: band camp, home golf matches, sports camp, solo and ensemble competition, summer seven on seven and any trip involving a donated charter for special event. All charter trips must be with a licensed and insured charter company.

ARTICLE 35 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

- 35.1 All employees covered under this Agreement are protected under the State Worker's Compensation Act of Ohio, in cases of injury or death incurred in the course or arising out of their employment.
- 35.2 An injury incurred while performing assigned responsibilities shall be reported to the injured employee's supervisor or other designated representative and an application shall be filed with the Bureau of Worker's Compensation.
- 35.3 All insurance not covered by the BWC shall be filed through the appropriate school insurance plan.

ARTICLE 36 JURY DUTY LEAVE

- Any bargaining unit member that is required to serve jury duty shall be paid the difference between his/her jury duty pay and his/her regular rate of pay for all days served on such jury duty.
- 36.2 Such jury duty leave shall not be deducted from any other form of leave time to which bargaining unit members are entitled.
- 36.3 Employees who are subpoenaed to appear in court for the business of the employer (Board) during their normal work hours shall not suffer any loss of pay.

ARTICLE 37 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- 37.1 In the case of death in the immediate family, (mother, father, spouse, children, brother, sister, mother-infather-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren, aunts, uncles, stepfather, stepmother, stepchildren and any person living in the employee's household), the employee may have up to three (3) days paid leave to arrange for and/or attend the funeral of the deceased. Αt the discretion of the Superintendent, this period may be extended due to extenuating circumstances as distance, unusual family or personal responsibilities and the like.
- 37.2 Absence for the first three (3) days of bereavement

leave shall not be deducted from sick leave.

37.3 In the event the bereavement leave period is extended for more than three (3) days, the ensuing days absent will be deducted from sick leave.

ARTICLE 38 DRIVERS ABSTRACTS

38.1 The Board shall be responsible for securing bus driver's license abstracts. It shall be the employee's responsibility to sign the necessary paperwork by the deadline set by the Board.

ARTICLE 39 TRANSPORTATION

- The Transportation Supervisor, will display all bus routes for a mandatory bus driver meeting to be held prior to the beginning of each school year. The display will include route information that could include: approximate route time, streets or roads, approximate student load and assigned bus.
- 39.2 A regular run is one that goes out on a daily basis for any schools calendar year that the Nelsonville-York Board of Education transports.

A "regular route" shall be defined as a route within the district that transports K-12 students from home to school to home on a daily basis.

The Transportation Supervisor will have the authority to implement special runs. A special run is needed due to a handicap or situation which requires special transportation needs. Driving a van for a special run shall not be considered bargaining work when the school van will be used to transport four (4) or fewer students.

- 39.3 All routes will be assigned by seniority every three (3) years. Once the most senior driver has chosen a route, that route is removed from the list. The next most senior bus driver will select next. The selection process will continue until all routes have been assigned.
- The Board agrees to pay the initial fee required by the commercial motor vehicles regulations up to \$25.00 less than the cost of a regular operator's driver's license for all bargaining unit employees who are required to meet such requirement. The renewal fee for

any such license shall be paid by the Board as per the initial fee.

- 39.5 Bus drivers will be reimbursed for regular service at their scheduled rate of pay for five and one half (5 1/2)hours per day for a total of one-hundred and eighty (180) days. This includes but not limited to: driving time, prep including bus warm-up, cleaning of the school bus, bus fueling, and other state assigned duties.
- 39.6 All bus routes are subject to change at administrative discretion based upon load and time. No route time will be adjusted beyond the agreed upon district daily total hours five and half (52).
- 39.7 To meet the one hundred and eighty (180) days of work per year, bus drivers will have the following options at a time that coincides when possible with their regular driving schedule:

For one (1) day

The driver will attend a scheduled drivers meeting before the start of school. This will be equal to 1/2 day. The driver will attend another meeting or workshop/clinic that will also equal one-half (1/2) day of attendance.

For one (1) day

The driver will attend two training programs/clinics (i.e., CPR, safety, film. etc.). Each will equal one-half (1/2) day for a total of one (1) day.

A driver can participate in the Regional Bus ROAD-E-O. The Regional Bus ROAD-E-O will equal one (1) day.

Failure to attend any or part of the options above would result in a deduction in the days based on the options not completed. Only two (2) days credit can be obtained for each driver in any given school year.

39.8 When asked by the Transportation Supervisor, all drivers will be required to participate in state required student trainings. If a driver has a scheduled trip or a doctor's excuse he/she will be excused from the training.

ARTICLE 40 CONTRACTING OUT

40.1 During the term of this agreement, the Board will not contract out or sub-contract work in any classification, so as to result in the layoff or displacement of any employees.

ARTICLE 41 TRAINING OR SCHOOLING

- 41.1 If training, re-certification or schooling is required of an employee, all costs of such shall be borne by the Board.
- In the event such training would require travel the Board shall pay mileage if employee must use personal vehicle. Any training scheduled shall be with continuity of salary, including training scheduled beyond the normal work week and/or work hours of an employee. Such training or schooling schedules shall be paid at the employee's normal rates of pay, including premium pay rate as pursuant to Article 20 of this Agreement.
- The Board agrees to pay the registration fee for drivers that elect to attend the advance driving class. The Board also agrees to pay for up to two(2) nights motel room(double occupancy if possible)per year.
- Any Aide working in various areas of specialization (i.e. special needs, pre-school) must be provided with the proper training prior to being requested to perform such duties.

ARTICLE 42 FREE ADMISSION TO SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

42.1 Classified employees shall be issued tickets upon request for free admission to all school related athletic activities. Employees who attend school activities will be considered to be on duty should a need arise.

ARTICLE 43 DRUG TESTING

Employee Drug Testing Policy

Overview

The procedure for the random testing of staff members for illegal drugs will be accomplished in conjunction with an independent drug-testing vendor selected by the Board of Education. The vendor will be provided by the superintendent, a list of eligible employees and in turn the vendor will randomly select employees to be tested. The number of tests given throughout the year will not be less than 50% of the number of employees in the program. Bus drivers are in a state program and will not be required to participate in this one.

Procedures in the Event of a Positive Result

A. First Positive Result

For the first positive result, the employee will, within five days have an appointment with a Certified Chemical Dependency Counselor (or at an agency certified by the Ohio Department of Health or the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services) for a chemical dependency assessment and then follow the recommendations of the counselor. If treatment is recommended, it must be with an Ohio Certified Chemical Dependency Counselor. The employee must also submit to weekly urine drug testing for three weeks.

The employee is responsible for all expenses of the test following a positive result. The Counselor must notify the Superintendent of the completion of the recommendations or program. Failure to complete the recommendations of Dependency Counselor will result in termination of employment.

B. Second Positive Result

For the second positive result there will be ten working days off without pay and the employee will, within five days have an appointment with a Certified Chemical Dependency Counselor (or at an agency certified by the Ohio Department of Health or the Ohio

Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services) for a chemical dependency assessment and then follow the recommendations of the counselor. If treatment is recommended, it must be with an Ohio Certified Chemical Dependency Counselor. The employee must also submit to weekly urine drug testing for three weeks. The employee is responsible for all expenses of the test following a positive result. The Counselor must notify the Superintendent of the completion of there recommendations or program. Failure to complete the recommendations of Dependency Counselor will result in termination of employment.

C. Third Positive Result

Termination of employment.

ARTICLE 44 DURATION

- 44.1 This Agreement shall become effective October 1, 2017 and shall continue in effect until July 31, 2020 and annually thereafter unless the Board or Union has given written notice to the other of its intent to modify this Agreement. Such notification shall be in accordance with Article 4, Section 4.1, paragraph B.
- 44.2 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement, each had unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals on any subject within the scope bargaining. The understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of the right and opportunity are set forth herein, and the parties agreement constitutes agree that this the contract between them and settles all demands and issues on all matters within the scope of bargaining.
- 44.3 Neither the Union, its agents, or any bargaining unit shall strike or engage in any member slow-down, withholding of services concerted or designed to interfere with the normal operations of the school district during the term or extended term of this agreement. Bargaining unit members shall be subject to the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code in accordance with 4117. ORC, including but not limited to Sections 4117.15, 4117.16, and 4117.18 in their entireties, as well as any further revisions to ORC. Further, bargaining unit members found to be

violation of the above shall be subject to immediate disciplinary action by the Board, including termination.

- The Board or its agents shall not lock out or otherwise prevent bargaining unit members from performing their regularly assigned duties where an object thereof is to bring pressure on the employees or an employee organization to compromise or capitulate to the employers terms regarding a labor relations dispute.
- The Board of Education and the Union agree that all items in this contract which supersede applicable state law and which may permissibly do so under Ohio Revised Code Section 4117.10(A) shall not be affected by this article. Should any clause of this contract be held in violation of the law shall be rendered null and void, but the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the agreement.

Signature Page

Signed this day of	, 2017 by the parties:
For the Union:	For the Board:
OAPSE Local #0400, President	Nelsonville-York Board of Education President
Local #0400, Vice President	Superintendent
OAPSE Regional Director	

Nelsonville-York City Schools Salary Schedules for FY18 (Effective October 1, 2017) Athens County IRN 044446

AIDE	477	0 h = 1'd= (405 d=) 0 h = (d=
AIDE		+ 8 holidays(185 days) 6 hours/day
Step I	\$16.15	\$17,926.50
Step II	\$16.59	\$18,414.90
Step III	\$17.04	\$18,914.40
Step IV	\$17.45	\$19,369.50
Step V	\$17.60	\$19,536.00
CAFETERIA	181 work days-	- 8 holidays (189 days) 7 hours/day
Step I	\$17.01	\$22,504.23
Step II	\$17.16	\$22,702.68
Step III	\$17.29	\$22,874.67
Step IV	\$17.44	\$23,073.12
Step V	\$17.60	\$23,284.80
MAINTENANCE CUSTODIAN	251 Work days+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day	
Step I	\$17.77	\$36,961.60
Step II	\$18.00	\$37,440.00
Step III	\$18.54	\$38,563.20
Step IV	\$19.09	\$39,707.20
Step V	\$19.24	\$40,019.20
MECHANIC	251 Work days	+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I	\$17.77	\$36,961.60
Step II	\$18.00	\$37,440.00
Step III	\$18.54	\$38,563.20
Step IV	\$19.09	\$39,707.20
Step V	\$19.24	\$40,019.20
1	•	• -/
SECRETARY	200 work days	+ 8 holidays (208 days) 7 hours per day
Step I		\$25,800.32
Step II	\$18.07	\$26,309.92
Step III	\$18.51	\$26,950.56
Step IV	\$18.75	\$27,300.00
Step V	\$19.10	\$27,809.60
	ψ10.10	Ψ21,000.00

Step I \$17.72 \$36,857.60 Step II \$18.07 \$37,585.60 Step III \$18.41 \$38,292.80 Step IV \$18.75 \$39,000.00 Step V \$19.10 \$39,728.00 BUS DRIVER 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day Step I \$18.54 \$19,170.36
Step II \$18.07 \$37,585.60 Step III \$18.41 \$38,292.80 Step IV \$18.75 \$39,000.00 Step V \$19.10 \$39,728.00 BUS DRIVER 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day
Step IV \$18.75 \$39,000.00 Step V \$19.10 \$39,728.00 BUS DRIVER 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day
Step V \$19.10 \$39,728.00 BUS DRIVER 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day
BUS DRIVER 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day
Step I \$18.54 \$19,170.36
Step II \$18.81 \$19,449.54
Step III \$19.07 \$19,718.38
Step IV \$19.35 \$20,007.90
Step V \$19.88 \$20,555.92
CUSTODIAN 251 work days + 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I \$17.81 \$37,044.80
Step II \$17.91 \$37,252.80
Step III \$18.02 \$37,481.60
Step IV \$18.17 \$37,793.60
Step V \$18.43 \$38,334.40
DADT TIME CAFETERIA
PART TIME CAFETERIA 181 work days+ 8 holidays (189 days) 3.5 hours per day
\$17.01 \$11,252.12
PART TIME CUSTODIAN 180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 2.5 hours per day
\$17.81 \$8,370.70
φσ. φο,ο,οσ
PART TIME BUS DRIVER 180 work days + 8 holidays (188 days) 3.5 hours per day
\$18.54 \$12,199.32

Part time employees will be paid the same hourly rate as full time employees.

Nelsonville-York City Schools Salary Schedules for FY19 Athens County IRN 044446

AIDE	177 work days	s+ 8 holidays(185 days) 6 hours/day
Step I	\$ 16.55	
Step II	\$ 16.99	\$ 18,370.60
•		\$ 18,858.90
Step III	\$ 17.44	\$ 19,358.40
Step IV	\$ 17.85	\$ 19,813.50
Step V	\$ 18.00	\$ 19,980.00
CAFETERIA	181 work days	s+ 8 holidays (189 days) 7 hours/day
Step I	\$ 17.41	\$ 23,033.43
Step II	\$ 17.56	\$ 23,231.88
Step III	\$ 17.69	\$ 23,403.87
Step IV	\$ 17.84	\$ 23,602.32
Step V	\$ 18.00	\$ 23,814.00
·		+ 10,0100
MAINTENANCE CUSTODIAN	251 Work days+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day	
Step I	\$ 18.17	\$ 37,793.60
Step II	\$ 18.40	\$ 38,272.00
Step III	\$ 18.94	\$ 39,395.20
Step IV	\$ 19.49	\$ 40,539.20
Step V	\$ 19.64	\$ 40,851.20
MECHANIC	251 Work days + 9 holidays(260 days) 8 hours per da	
Step I	\$ 18.17	\$ 37,793.60
Step II	\$ 18.40	\$ 38,272.00
Step III	\$ 18.94	\$ 39,395.20
Step IV	\$ 19.49	\$ 40,539.20
Step V	\$ 19.64	\$ 40,851.20
SECRETARY		s + 8 holidays (208 days) 7 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.12	\$ 26,382.72
Step II	\$ 18.47	\$ 26,892.32
Step III	\$ 18.91	\$ 27,532.96
Step IV	\$ 19.15	\$ 27,882.40
Step V	\$ 19.50	\$ 28,392.00

SECRETARY(12 MONTH)	251 work day	ys + 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.12	\$ 37,689.60
Step II	\$ 18.47	\$ 38,417.60
Step III	\$ 18.81	\$ 39,124.80
Step IV	\$ 19.15	\$ 39,832.00
Step V	\$ 19.50	\$ 40,560.00
BUS DRIVER	180 work day	s+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.94	\$ 19,583.96
Step II	\$ 19.21	\$ 19,863.14
Step III	\$ 19.47	\$ 20,131.98
Step IV	\$ 19.75	\$ 20,421.50
Step V	\$ 20.28	\$ 20,969.52
CUSTODIAN	251 work day	ys + 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.21	\$ 37,876.80
Step II	\$ 18.31	\$ 38,084.80
Step III	\$ 18.42	\$ 38,313.60
Step IV	\$ 18.57	\$ 38,625.60
Step V	\$ 18.83	\$ 39,166.40
PART TIME CAFETERIA	181 work days	s+ 8 holidays (189 days) 3.5 hours per day
	\$17.41	\$11,516.72
PART TIME CUSTODIAN	180 work day	s+ 8 holidays (188 days) 2.5 hours per day
77 1 6661.65%	\$18.21	\$8,558.70
DADT TIME BUO BEN'ES	400	
PART TIME BUS DRIVER	180 work days+ 8 \$18.94	8 holidays (188 days) 3.5 hours per day \$12,462.52

Part time employees will be paid the same hourly rate as full time employees.

Nelsonville-York City Schools Salary Schedules for FY20 Athens County IRN 044446

AIDE	177 work days+ 8 holidays(185 days) 6 hours/day		
Step I	\$ 16.95	\$ 18,814.50	
Step II	\$ 17.39	\$ 19,302.90	
Step III	\$ 17.84	\$ 19,802.40	
Step IV	\$ 18.25	\$ 20,257.50	
Step V	\$ 18.40	\$ 20,424.00	
CAFETERIA	181 work days+ 8 holidays (189 days) 7 hours/day		
Step I	\$ 17.81	\$ 23,562.63	
Step II	\$ 17.96	\$ 23,761.08	
Step III	\$ 18.09	\$ 23,933.07	
Step IV	\$ 18.24	\$ 24,131.52	
Step V	\$ 18.40	\$ 24,343.20	
MAINTENANCE CUSTODIAN	251 Work days+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per da		
Step I	\$ 18.57	\$ 38,625.60	
Step II	\$ 18.80	\$ 39,104.00	
Step III	\$ 19.34	\$ 40,227.20	
Step IV	\$ 19.89	\$ 41,371.20	
Step V	\$ 20.04	\$ 41,683.20	
MECHANIC	251 Work days + 9 holidays(260 days) 8 hours per day		
Step I	\$ 18.57	\$ 38,625.60	
Step II	\$ 18.80	\$ 39,104.00	
Step III	\$ 19.34	\$ 40,227.20	
Step IV	\$ 19.89	\$ 41,371.20	
Step V	\$ 20.04	\$ 41,683.20	
SECRETARY	•	8 holidays (208 days) 7 hours per day	
Step I	\$ 18.52	\$ 26,965.12	
Step II	\$ 18.87	\$ 27,474.72	
Step III	\$ 19.31	\$ 28,115.36	
Step IV	\$ 19.55	\$ 28,464.80	
Step V	\$ 19.90	\$ 28,974.40	

SECRETARY(12 MONTH)	251 work days	+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.52	\$ 38,521.60
Step II	\$ 18.87	\$ 39,249.60
Step III	\$ 19.21	\$ 39,956.80
Step IV	\$ 19.55	\$ 40,664.00
Step V	\$ 19.90	\$ 41,392.00
BUS DRIVER	180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 5.5 hours per day	
Step I	\$ 19.34	\$ 19,997.56
Step II	\$ 19.61	\$ 20,276.74
Step III	\$ 19.87	\$ 20,545.58
Step IV	\$ 20.15	\$ 20,835.10
Step V	\$ 20.68	\$ 21,383.12
CUSTODIAN	251 work days	+ 9 holidays (260 days) 8 hours per day
Step I	\$ 18.61	\$ 38,708.80
Step II	\$ 18.71	\$ 38,916.80
Step III	\$ 18.82	\$ 39,145.60
Step IV	\$ 18.97	\$ 39,457.60
Step V	\$ 19.23	\$ 39,998.40
PART TIME CAFETERIA	181 work days+ 8 holidays (189 days) 3.5 hours per day	
	\$17.81	\$11,781.32
PART TIME CUSTODIAN	180 work days+ 8 holidays (188 days) 2.5 hours per day	
	\$18.61	\$8,746.70
PART TIME BUS DRIVER	180 work days+ \$19.34	8 holidays (188 days) 3.5 hours per day \$12,725.72

Part time employees will be paid the same hourly rate as full time employees.

Signature Page

Signed this 18 day of October , 2017 by the parties:

For the Union:

For the Board:

Nelsonville-York Board of Education President

Local #0400, Vice President